A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, April 12,2016
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following,

Jennifer J. St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: 04-08-16
1131 Hastings Street 4:60 p.m.
Traverse City, M1 49686

(231) 922-4940




Light and Power Board 2 April 12,2016
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

Organizational Meeting. (p.4)

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial ifems
fogether to be dealt with by one Board niotion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 22, 2016.
(Approval recommended) (p.8 )

b. Consideration of BW-31 Project Authorization Request. (Approval recommended)
(Arends) (p.10)

c. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Power Line Supply in the amount of
$59,137.92 for materials for LaFranier/Barlow Transmission Line Upgrade project.
(Approval recommended) (Arends) (p.13)

d. Consideration of authorizing a series of purchase orders to Thomasson Company for
Wood Distribution Poles for the Pole Replacement project. (Approval Recommended)
(Arends) (p.16)

Items Removed From Consent Calendar

a.
b.

3. Unfinished Business

a. Customer Generation — Solar rate discussion, (Arends/Myers-Beman) (p.18)

4, New Business

a. Consideration of approving a construction contract for LaFranier/Barlow
Transmission Line Upgrade project. (Arends/GRP Engineering) (p.36)

b. Garland Street Project presentation and request for approval and funding of the
lighting components. (Colbuin) (p.39 )



C.

Light and Power Board 3 April 12,2016
Regular Meeting

Consideration of a request for approval and financial participation in the Cass Street/Lake
Street Streetscape Improvements Project and the Park Street Streetscape Project lighting
components. (Colburn) (p.57)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a.

b.

C.

From Legal Counsel.

From Staff.
a. Project closeout report for Southside Distribution Substation, West Side
Transmission Line Upgrade and Wayne Street Distribution Line Rebuild, and

Hickory Hills Distribution Underground {(Myers-Beman) (p.61 )

From Board.

7. Public Comment

a.

b.

/is

Reserved

1. Ann Rogers, 1236 Peninsula Drive, Traverse City, representing NMEAC,
Groundworks & MI Climate Action Network regarding what these groups have
been doing over the last 7 years to learn, educate, and advocate for renewable
green energy, in particular solar, for our area.(p. 67)

General



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

Light & Power Board

Tim Arends, Executive Director
April 06, 2016

L&P Board Organizational Meeting

As required by City Charter Section 177(f), the board meeting of April 12, 2016 will be the annual
organizational meeting in which a chairperson and vice-chairperson are elected, and a secretary is appointed by
the Board, The Charter language is as follows:

“An election of officers of the Board shall be held annually at the first regular meeting following the
appointment of a new Board member after the end of a regular term of office. No member shall serve as
chairman for more than two (2) consecutive terms.”

All Board Members, with the exception of John Taylor who has just completed two consecutive terms, are
eligible for nomination as board chairperson. All Board Members are eligible to serve as vice-chairperson. The
following procedure would be appropriate for the organizational portion of the meeting.

o Tim Arends, as Secretary to the Board, shall initially preside over the meeting.

Call meeting to order — Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Open the floor to nominations for chairperson (nominations need support), call for any further
nominations for chairperson.

Close nominations

Board discussion (nominations will be voted on in order received)

Public comment (specific to nominations for chairperson)

Voice Vote — Once four votes are received by any one nominee that nomince becomes the new
chairperson. '
Secretary turns the meeting over to the new chairperson.

o The newly clected chairperson follows the same process described above in electing a vice-chairperson
of the Board.

o The Chairpersen should then appoint a Secretary to the Board with approval of a Board majority, This
has historically been the Executive Director,

o Next, a Human Resources Committee should be formed consisting of two or three board members and
one alternate, City Charter Section 177(h) allows for ad hoc subcommittees, however, there can be no
standing commiittees. Therefore, it is appropriate to have this committee’s term expire at the end of 12
months.

o Proceed to the Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda.



. . GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
The Clty Of TrﬂV@fse Clty 400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, Mi 49684
. . (231} 922-4480
Office of the C'ty Clerk tcclerk@traversecitymi.gov

March 22, 2016

Mr. Patrick McGuire
308 N. Elmwood Ave
Traverse City, MI 49684

Dear Mr. McGuire:
Subject: Reappointment — Traverse City Light and Power Board

Congratulations on your reappointment! As you may be aware, the City Comimission has reappointed
you to one five-year term expiring April 5, 2021, on the Traverse City Light and Power Board.

It is great to see people like you who are willing to serve. [ am sure that I can speak accurately on
behalf of the citizens of Traverse City when I express appreciation for your gencrosity with your
time, experience and knowledge.

1am enclosing an updated excerpt of the City’s Board Book showing the curtent City representation
on the Board.

Again, thank you for your willingness to serve in a capacity that contributes to the betterment of our
community. .

Sincerely,

copy: Tim Arends, Executive Dircctor « \




Traverse City Light & Power Board

Initial Apt. Date Termination
Jeff Palisin (City Resident Elector) 03/18/13 04/02/18
975 Pine Ridge Dr, TC, 49686 (EAT, 4/2/13)

929-6666 (Res) 499-7655 (Bus)
jeffpe@normicind.com

John Taylor (City Resident Elector) 05/03/10 : 04/06/20
307 W 12th 8t, TC, 49684
922-1187 (Res) 617-532-0944 (Bus) 617-899-1769 (Cell)

john.a.taylor@gmail.com

Bob Spence (City Resident Elector) 05/07/12 04/03/17
307 W, 11th St, TC, 49684
645-4222 (Cell) 947-7824 (Bus)

Jan Geht (City Resident Elector) 06/17/13 04/01/19
715 Quail Ridge Dr, TC, 49686
205-255-1516 (Res) 941-8048 (Bus)
geht@traverselaw.com

Patrick McGuire (City Resident Elector) 11/10/11 04/05/21
308 N. Elmwood Ave, TC, 49684
883-2087 (Cell) 995-7896 (Bus)

paddymcguire@me.com

Commissioner Tim Werner 11/09/15 11/13/17
(Ex Officio/Full Voting Authority)
400 Boardman Ave, TC, 49684
313-6903 (Res)

iwerner (Qtraver seci tyn i. oV

Commissioner Amy Shamroe 11/09/15 11/13/17
(Ex Officio/Full Voting Authority)
511 Depot View #20, TC, 49686
517-930-9999 (Res)

ashamroe(@traversecitymi.gov

Executive Director and Secretary (Tim Arends - Executive Director) - staff

Non-Commissioner Board members shall be appointed to serve terms of five (5) years from the
first Monday of April. The Commission Board members shall be appointed for a two-year terin
bi-annually at the City Commission organizational meeting.

Traverse City Light and Power
Page 1



This Board consists of 7 members nominated and appointed by the City Commission, Unexpired
term vacancies shall be filled by the Mayor with approval of the City Commission. Not less than
one and no more than two of these members shall be City Commissioners selected by the City
Commission and shall be ex-officio members with full voting authority.

Members must be resident elector of City, except that one member may be non-resident if he
resides within current actual service area of the Department (current actual service area is defined
as an address that could receive service from TCL&P; it is not required that the address is currently
receiving service from TCL&P).

Non-Commission Board Members cannot hold any
other City office nor can they be an employee of the City.

The City Manager or the City Managet's designee shall be an ex-officio member without voting
authority and shall not be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum.

Purpose: "shall have exclusive jurisdiction, control and management of the Light and Power
Department and all its operations and facilities, except as herein provided. Unless specifically
allocated to the City Commission or to a City official, the Board shall have all the powers and
duties possessed by the City to construct, acquire, expand and operate the Light and Power system,
ete., ete.," (See Charter provisions).

Creation of the Light & Power Board required by City Charter.

Meets 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month at 5:15

Traverse City Light and Power
Page 2

e B



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m,, Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, March 22, 2016

Board Members -
Present: Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe, Bob Spence, Jan Geht
Absent: Tim Werner, John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Penny Hill, Assistant City Manage: .
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Doren, Ka;la Myels—Beman Pete Schimpke, Kelli

Schroeder, Jennifer St. Amo_u;_ Stephanie Tvardek

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by'Yice Chairman Geht.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendal

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Shamloe that the followmg actlons as recommended on the
Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda, be appxoved :

a. Minutes of the Regular Meetmg of March g .2 v

b. Purchase 01de _. 0 Power Lme Supply f01 optlcal wire fon the LaFranier/Barlow
Transmission Line Upglade iject

Jiility 2016-17 Op 1at1ngBudget -

CARRIED unanimously. (Werne1 Taylcn absent)

Items Removed fl om the Consent Calenda1

None.

Item 3 on the Agenda "i;)_,q’,"ﬁUﬂ'finished Business

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

None.

Ttem 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 March 22, 2016

a.

From Legal Counsel.

None.

From Staff,

I.

Tim Arends and Board discussed the potential transfer of River Road customers to
Cherryland Electric Cooperative.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Penny Hill, Assistant City Manager

2. Karla Myers-Beman presented the 2015 Ann H Rep('_):_r_t:_to customers.
The following individuals addresse_gl_ .
Tim Arends, Executive Director

3. Tim Arends polled the Boatd for availal.)ilig;r;__i’q:l';h'e‘ April 12, 2016 gular Meeting.
A majority of the Board members will be available, the meeting stands.

From Board.

Tim Arends, Secretary
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board Fﬁ
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering
Date: April 6, 2016

Subject: 2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation Circuit BW-31

As reported to the Board on several occasions over the last few years, TCL&P Staff has
been working on the design and cost estimate for the rehabilitation of circuit BW-31 out of
our Barlow Substation. Recently, we noticed that no Project Authorization Request (PAR)
was ever submitted to the Board.

The cost estimate is $721,000. In an effort to be consistent with other Capital
Improvement Projects and in accordance with proper established procedures, we are now
submitting the PAR for Board approval. Gaining approval will allow staff to proceed and
complete the project.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-
controversial item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with
staff's recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “ltems Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion
of the agenda for full discussion. I[f after Board discussion you agree with staff's
recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD AUTHORIZES STAFF TO PROCEED WITH
THE 2016 DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT REHABILITATION PROJECT, CIRCUIT BW-31,
AT AN APPROXIMATE COST OF $721,000 AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT
MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

10



2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation

Circuit BW-31 TRAVERSE cITY
PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 55 LIGHT & POWER
PAR# 2016-2

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration:  April 12,2016
Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes  CIP:  $650,000

Objective: Target Completion date of May 15, 2017
Project Description:

Rehabilitate distribution facilities on the Barlow Circuit BW-31 (BW-31) to improve reliability
and public safety. This project includes replacing approximately 115 deteriorated poles, about
17,900 feet of old copper primary and secondary conductor and 28 transformers. Existing 336
ACSR conductor will be reused on the new pole structures for the 3-phase part of the circuit. This
project affects almost 700 Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) customers. The project location
involves the areas starting at the Barlow Substation just south of Eighth Street on Barlow Street,
going north to Front Street, then going east of Front Street to Peninsula Drive and Milliken Drive.
The circuit then goes north on Peninsula Drive to Center Road and north on Milliken Drive to
Eastern Avenue,

Selection Method:

BW-31 was chosen from 25 distribution circuits based on number of customers as well as
reliability history.

Project Purpose and Necessity (Problem We Are Solving):

Many years of being exposed to ice, wind, rain, and snow have left BW-31 in need of repair.
While poles, wires, and other pieces of equipment continue to deteriorate, the risk of poles and
wires falling on the ground continues to increase -- posing a public safety concern. In addition,
more interruptions of service to our customers will occur with longer durations.

Project Benefits:
The 2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation of BW-31 will:

Improve public safety by reducing the chance of poles and wires falling down
Improve customer service by reducing outages as well as duration of outages.
Reduce energy needs by reducing losses in older and smaller conductors.
Reduce maintenance costs associated with emergency repairs,

* & = »

Page 1 0f2

11



2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation

Circuit BW-31 nuvsass eIy
PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST %y LIGHT & POWER
PAR# 2016-2

Other Alternatives:

Do nothing. Public safety could be jeopardized by falling wires and poles. Customer satisfaction
will decline as the number of outages along with the duration of outages will climb. Maintenance
costs will increase as more money will be spent on emergency repairs. There will be no conservation
of energy since the smaller and older conductors will continue to cause higher line losses as
compared to installing new larger conductors.

Timing of Project (Why Now):
TCL&P currently has 25 distribution circuits. Most will require at least one-half to one

full year rehabilitation in the up-coming years. This yearly rehabilitation project must
begin now in order for us to perform timely repairs on the various circuits.

Cost Estimate:
Materials $ 109,565
Labor (3-man crew with bucket & digger) $ 486,957
Engr & Administration & Construction Inspections $ 30,435
Contingency (15%) $ 94,043
Total $ 721,000
Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance and as planned for in the six year Capital Plan. Bonding
will not be required.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

A reduction in amnnual maintenance costs associated with normal maintenance and
emergency tepairs will occur.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the TCL&P Board approve the 2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation

of Barlow Circuit BW-31 and all necessary expenditures in order to maintain safe and
reliable distribution service to its customers.

Page 2 of 2

12



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering F
Date: April 7, 2016

Subject: LaFranler/Barlow Transmission Line Upgrade Project: Material Bids

On Wednesday, April 6, 2016, four bids were received for electrical cable & equipment for
the LaFranier Road 69 kV Transmission Line Project. Two bidders Power Line Supply and
RESCO, submitted complete bids while the bids from Annixer and rby had items for which
there was no price quoted. The Bid prices are:

Vendor
Power Line Supply $59,137.92 (includes a 1.5% discount)
RESCO $77,792.35
Annixer Not all items quoted
frby Not all items quoted

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Power Line Supply. Staff concurs
with GRP's recommendation to accept the bid from Power Line Supply in the amount of
$59,137.92, and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a purchase order forthe
transmission material.

This Item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-
controversial item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with
staff's recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
guestions, it should be placed on the "Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” poriion
of the agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff's
recommendation then the following motion would be appropriate.

MOVED BY . SECONDED BY. .

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO POWER LINE SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $569,137.92
FOR TRANSMISSION MATERIAL FOR THE LAFRANIER/BARLOW TRANSNMISSION
LINE UPGRADE PROJECT.

13




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

April 6,2016
15-0799.01

Mr, Pete Schimpke

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Strect
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: LaFranier Road 69kV Transmission Line
Eleetrical Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Pete:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the electrical cable & equipment material quotes
for the LaFranier Road 69kV Transmission Line Project. Of the four material vendors invited to bid, all
responded with quotations, but only Power Line Supply (PLS) and RESCO supplied a complete
quotation for all items.

Vendor Electrical
Power Line Supply $60,038.50
Annixer $ (Not all items quoted.)
RESCO $77,792.35
Irby $ (Not all items quoted.)

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL.&P accept the material quotation from Power Line Supply
for the LaFranier Road 69kV Transmission Line clectrical material. Additionally, Power Line Supply
will offer a 1.5% discount if all items are purchased through them. Please contact me should you have
any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

W/W

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Mr. Tim Arends

6290 Jupiter Ave NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont, Ml 49306 Petoskey Ml 48770
P: 616.942.7183 WwWw.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439,9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698



oLQzZ/9/v

34 ‘UBy3SDIN ‘4 [SBYSIN

Wmmmm\.:m NMMMW Nm“ A9

U ‘Bunsauibug 4o

[EUSIBIN Py JSIURIJE

L0"66.L0-GL

‘peas pue pauado Apignd S15m WYy PIIENGE] SPIQ 24 ‘9102 ‘S MY ‘ABPSIURaAA U0 SW [B30] “Wrd00:Z Ye Jeyl Auas 0) S syl

aajdwoou|

8588¥ I Wesesd I
Aepn 2unUDA, 9185
Aquy

SE'T6LLLS

Z9GES I "UOIIPPIN
i Isnyauld 0922
0os3d

(26°Z£1'658) paseyoind sl
BuILpAIBAS I JUNODSIP %G1

05'8£0'09%

LL96¥% 1IN ‘A paay
193415 WCY 0Ly
Aiddng aur Jamod

jadwosu]

8EEEY 71| 'UOOREN

pd 1eig PO 00L L
Jxuuy

SHYVINTY

JORId AIF

sS¥3qaag

02467 IN “AIMSO13d
13FULS AvE 65¥
"ONI "ONIYIINIONT d4D

UFANIONI

AVRITLVIN

INIT NOISSTAISNVAL QY ¥3INYHHY

NOILVINgV1 aid

9896% N ‘A LID ISYIAAVHL
13341S SONILSYH LELE

HIMOd 2 LHOIM ALID ISHIAVHL
TWSNMO

15



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board ?qg'
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering
Date: April 6,2016

Subject: Pole Replacements Project — Wood Distribution Poles

At the February 23, 2016 regular meeting, the Board approved the project authorization request
for the Pole Replacements Project, which includes the replacement of approximately 300
substandard poles and related material. Of the 300 poles for replacement, staff has reallocated 23
poles that are located within the BW-31 circuit footprint. These poles will be charged to the BW-
31 circuit rehab project. Staffissued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the wood distribution poles
and will be requesting the Board award the bid at the April 12 meeting. Staff plans to have a
material bid award ready for approval by April 26, 2016.

Requests for wood distribution poles were sent out and received as follows:

BIDDERS
Bell Lumber & Brown Wood

Thomasson Co. Pole Co. Preserving Co., Inc. Bridgewell
35’ Unit Price $244.37 $255.00 No Bid $263.00
40’ Unit Price $290.87 $326.00 No Bid $322.00
45° Unit Price $395. 70 $384.00 No Bid $394.00
50’ Unit Price $401.95 $447.00 No Bid $440.00
55’ Unit Price $512.58 $597.00 No Bid $686.00
60’ Unit Price $526.95 $698.00 No Bid $780.00
Total Project Cost* $69,144.81 $75,813.00 $77,555.00

*Total Project Cost is based on estimated quantities of total poles required in each height category

The RFP requested bidders submit a unit price that shall be held firm over the next 12 months.
Due to the large quantity of poles needed for this project, and limited space to store that quantity
on site, staff intends to purchase poles in batches of small quantities as needed throughout the
length of the project.

Staff took advantage of the early thaw in March and got a head start on this project outside of the
city limits (due to the moratorium on digging within the City of Traverse City before early April).
Poles have been taken from inventory for work completed to-date, but staff plans to replace those
poles through the purchase orders with the approved vendor.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Staff
recommends issuing a series of purchase orders to Thomasson Company for the purchase of wood

10



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

distribution poles. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
SERIES OF PURCHASE ORDERS TO THOMASSON COMPANY IN THE NOT TO
EXCEED AMOUNT OF $69,144.81 FOR WOOD DISTRIBUTION POLES FOR THE

POLE REPLACEMENTS PROJECT.

17




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12,2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Directo@
Date: April 12,2016

Subject: Solar Avoided Cost Rate Tariff

At the February 23, 2016 Board meeting, Mark Beauchamp from Utility Financial Solutions, .

LLC (“UFS”) presented on the topic of solar avoided cost rate tariff. The primary purpose of
this discussion was driven by a request from a commercial customer to construct a large solar
array within the utility’s distribution system, (Selected pages from his presentation are included
for your reference.)

The utility had to formulate a fair tariff rate to allow the customer to appropriately calculate their
rate of return on their solar array investment since the solar array exceeded the Net Metering
Policy’s (the “Policy”) allowable nameplate capacity of 20 kW. Since that time, another
customer has shown interest in constructing a large solar array within the utility’s distribution
systenw

As a secondary discussion, UFS also calculated the avoided cost tariff rate for residential
customers. This was completed as a visionary step based on the presumption that the utility
would want to remove the subsidies of fixed infrastructure costs that are not being shared by
those customers that are participating in the Policy (the Policy is included for your review). The
approximate amount of those subsidies is approximately $3,400 with current net metering
participants. If the Policy capacity amount werc to become fully subscribed, the subsidies would
approximate $21,700. (A spreadsheet is included providing the current subscription of net
metering participants and the balance left to be subscribed.)

If the utility were to implement the proposed avoided cost rate tariff, from the customer
perspective this would impact the payback on the customers investment in solar generation.
Staff assumed a 5 kW solar array, costing $15,000 for a residential rate class customer, with the
customer taking advantage of the 30% federal tax credit, 12% capacity factor and receiving
credits allowed by the utility’s Policy, it would have a payback period of 20.1 years; if the utility
were to approve the avoided cost rate tariff, the payback period would extend to 27.45 years.
The offset of electricity and excess credits would decline from $524.64 to $382.56. (Analysis
does not take into consideration time value of money or solar degradation.)

Staff has obtained several net metering policies from other utilities in the State of Michigan and

the majority of them follow the guidelines set forth in the Public Act 295 of 2008, Clean, .

Renewable and Efficient Energy Act, and have not moved toward changing to more of a

18



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12,2016

customer generation policy that would have characteristics similar to legislation proposed in the

cuirent house and senate bills as follows:

1. Senate Bill 483

a. A distributed generation customer shall purchase all of the electricity consumed
and shall receive a credit for all energy produced.

b. The bill credit shall be the value of the energy avoided by the electric utility,
which shall be determined by applying the day ahead wholesale energy market
clearing price at the appropriate pricing node. The value of energy avoided shall
be determined by applying the relevant independent system operator’s monthly
capacity auction clearing price for each kilowatt per month.

2. House Bill 4879 (similar to Public ACT 295 of 2008 except for those generators with
capacity of S500kW or more)

a. Apply a fair value tamiff only to those customers whose eligible electric
generators have a capacity of 500 kW or more.

3. House Bill 4880 :

a. An electric provider may apply for commission approval for an alternative rate
that compensates a customer through a bill credit.

b. The alternative rate value methodology shall at a minimum account for the value
of energy and its delivery, generation capacity, transmission capacity, line losses
and environmental value.

On the national level, (information from the National Renewable Energy Laboratory website)
Minnesota and Texas are the only two states that have moved toward a value of solar tariff rate
design (alternative to net metering), where the customer continues to purchase ail of their energy
at the utility’s retail rate, but are compensated for solar PV gencration at a separate rate in dollars
per kWh.

The benefits of moving toward this type of model is the utility can better understand customer
load, customers receive compensation based on utility specific benefits and costs and customers

pay for transmission and distribution services embedded in the retail rate of the electricity they

purchase.

TCL&P’s current Policy has limits based on rate classes (150 kW for residential, 320 kW for
commercial, and 290 kW for industrial), staff is proposing to eliminate this restriction and allow
the projects based on a first come first sexve basis.

Staff is providing options on how the Board can move forward. The options are not all inclusive
and different variations could be created. Staff is recommending option number two, as it allows
the utility to continue to provide something they have already offered while waiting and
monitoring how state and national trends proceed over the next few years.

1. No proposed changes to the Net Metering Policy, and any projects that exceed the
allowed limit would be brought before the Board through a purchase power agreement
with the solar avoided cost rate tariff being the proposed rate for payment of energy.
Once the Policy is 80% subscribed, staff would come back to the Board with a proposed

19



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

customer generation policy on moving forward, or allow for the expansion of the current
Net Metering Policy.

NO MOTION IS NECESSARY.

2. Remove the rate class restrictions of residential, commercial and industrial and allow the
net metering projects to be approved based on availability of the authorized kW’s, not
taking into consideration the customer’s rate classes. Projects that exceed the allowed
project size limit would be brought before the Board through a purchase power
agreement with the solar avoided cost rate tariff being the proposed rate for payment of
energy. Once the Net Metering Policy is 80% subscribed, staff would come back to the
Board with a proposed policy on moving forward or expand the policy limits.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES STAFF TO AMEND THE NET METERING
POLICY BY REMOVING THE RATE CLASS RESTRICTIONS.
3. Move forward in setting a public hearing for the proposed solar avoided cost rate tariff to
be held at the April 24, 2016 regular meeting and draft a customer generation policy for

Board approval that would grandfather all current participants in the Net Metering Policy.

MOVED BY s SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE SECRETARY TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING
FOR THE PROPOSED SOLAR AVOIDED COST RATE TARIFF TO BE HELD AT
THE APRIL 24, 2016 REGULAR MEETING; AND FURTHER THAT A NOTICE OF
THE PUBLIC HEARING BE POSTED ON THE UTILITY’S WEBSITE AND PLACED

IN THE TRAVERSE CITY RECORD EAGLLE.

20



DT ‘oo repueng £

S

Apnis 150D poOpIOAY Jejos
Al1D) 9SJdARI |




DT ‘suonnjos fepuewn Ann

S

paulwidlap mm>3>p_u

9SJ9ARI] J0J 1S0D PIpIOAe unJd buo| syl Je[os JoJ

m_co‘_n_ uolonpoJdd pue sayepdn ubisap ajel 1D,
‘S1ynsaJ Apnis 3JIAISS JO 1S0D DL Jol1id syl buisn «

ym] J=d

S1U3D Z{8O" [eldJawwod Jo} pue Ypn| Jo2d sjusd

8080" g 01 |elnuapiIsad Joj} Je|os Jo anjeA 4101
10} UOIleUlW.J19P 1S0D pPIaploAe Ue pala|dwod S{n «

ubisap

9leJ |eJ1NdU DNUDA3J pue 31kt Agpuels 1s0d

PoPIOA®R JB|OS UO S3IPN1S 1DNpuUOod 01 SUOIIN|OS
|eidueuld AM[IIN paulelad Ajlusdad AllD) 3SJ9ABL | «

MIIADY



150D
1U3.14NnD)

P34 150D
PoPIOAY

}pa.0
]SO0 PapIOAR BUj1 BN[eA 0] MOY UO SSLI0BY] 38y |

1IpaJD) 150D
PAPIOAY JO anjep 3y} mEEELE@




uolleJausab sisawolisnd
J0 anjeA Aldeded Joj 11pa4d spirodd 10U Aejy <
JowWwo1snd 01 [eubis ad1ud 1ua1SISUODU| <

JesA uaAIb Aue ul Ajjennueisgns >‘_m>? ued) <
SBbUIABS UoISSIWSURL] o
sbujAes 1S0D |an4 o
Jamod Jo aseyound i1adjdep o

pPoplOAE
SI 1Byl 1S0D 3yl S| UunJ 140ys ul 150D papIioAe syl
Allj1an sy 01 Ajddns Jamod sapinoid Jswo1snd Usym <

uny Moys

11p=al)
150D PApPIOAY JO UONRUIWIRISQ



-
EwEE_:_uw\_w?_wmmm

sbuiaes uolssiwsueld |
SbuiAes 1s0d |94
uoneiauab paploAe JO 150D [eiide)

uoneJauab
JO UOI12NJ1SUOD BUIPIOAE JO 1SOD [BD113403Y)

B BUISN PAUIWIDIBP S4B S1SOD PIPIOAY <
uny Buo _

11p=i1)
150D PIPIOAY JO UORUIW.IDI(

o

o)

o

o



S1S0D |on)
pue Aldeded yioq J0j HPI4D JWOISND SIAID «
S1S0D abeiaAe pue 1USWISIAUL [BIII0ISIY SIS

Alddns 1amod J0j Jusuodwod

AbJisaus pue puewsp Yirod S21PN1S IDIAIIS
JO 1S0D DbuISn PaulW.Id13P DJ 1S0D PIPIOAY <

1S0D) 1U3Jin)

1pa.JD
1S0D) PIPIOAY JO UOIIRUILLIDIA(



D717 ‘suonnjog [enueuty Ann

uoneisiuiwy

‘uonewJoju] Abusu3g SN) AOD ™BI9 MMM WO} PIALIDP
9J9M 1lun bulleJausb 1xau 10} sad1ud seb JeinieN «

elep adueipe.dl

|ed1101s1Y (Alojedoqe] AbJaug a|gemausy [euollepN)
T3YN WO.J) P3aALISp Sem elep uolldnpouad Jejos <
d1D1 wou} Aiddng Jamod <«
S9SSO7 WD1SAS «
W31SAS Uolssiwsuell qns «
suo|le1sqns <
siswojsued| <

SQull uonnqlasiq «
S1S0D 1uU=-lind U |

paseq pue sbuiAes 1s0)) [euibiey
uny-buo pasn AllD asJaAel |




‘D1 ‘suonnjog Tepueury Amn

I CETS0ES $ [S8°SSL $ SE8L9T S $ TYIOVZT S <0029 S 89SHeEee 3 [e301
76500  TISL9L T6¥T  $ 90°CS $ | 9T'EVE $ €306 $ | §b'99Z Sl
96900 0S0V9‘T €Tz S vr9TT K | §S179 $ 00STZ S ST/¥O ST
LS00 LL'S9SC  |9TTS  $ 9669T S| | 9LLIT  § 696 S €6698 | S [0t
TSYT0  [¥'9/6°8 YI'TL  $ TTTI0N $ | B8LEIT S SYO80T S | LLSLT'S Sle
99CT'0 6TL¥86 |6v'68 $ 79'SL0T $  6T0%T $ wrOIIT $ SvrS0ss S8
8€90'0 TEY6SS | [600T S LyOpY $ TOVCET  $ 9EWLr S ISTSTT Sl
CE800  /6'8TYL  [S9TOT S 6£6€9 00 S L 6T€9ET S LOTWOT S | /9zTe & E
€990°0 9/'/20S ¥8Z0T $ Tir'zes S ' T9°L9€T S SpEesS S WrTOLT | S |s
[990°0 ©L8S8%Y  |v8'es $ ¢SToE $  8T0s6T S 89789 S cr0s8T | S v
88Y0'0 S6'089C | TTe9 $ eyl $ | CESSP'T S S6%ST S ST6SL | S |e
/8900 8C006T |I8TE $ 1ISSHT s lzereL S oSkt S lsLtvv | Sle
TCCT0S SyelLT S |09 § | evssT S| | Stv8E S|oeL6c S| €668 St

YW  s3ulnes [elo] | sS3ulneS  UOISSIWSUBLL NS s3uines ASiaug sSuines ssuines Aypede)y | Yiuo

Jad3s0) uonnguisiq pue uonelsqns uoissiwsuesj uononpolid

paploay |
[eRUAPISIY - Jejos |

sbuines [elnuapisay



DT ‘suonnjog [eweusy AJnn

TV'STOE $ SE'8L9% $ - $ TWIOVLT $ T0°0L29 $ 89'SKe'EC S [e3o]
8F'65 $ 907TS $ 9zEvE S €806 S S99z S fet
0£/00 6STZLT T80T $  troTT S ' GS¥Z9 $ 00°STZ $ 8T'/¥9 S [T
TI90'0  OL'STLT 6070 $ 96'69T s  9LUTIT S S69%6C 00 S 6698 S ot
98vT'0  ST'68L'6 C8'€8C S TTTIOT $ 68°/€9T $ Sr080T S /L'6/TS S e
TOET'0  OLPITOT | 00/SE S T9SL0T S 61090 $§ trITTT S Sb'S05°S S |8
TL900 9L968'S | z8TOor $ b Obv $  19%eET $ 9swr S 1Svsee S |
99800 e8'SeL’L | 0S60F S 6E6E9 s BLE9ET § LOTHOT $ 9UTE s
L6500  6L'SEE’S L[TOTY S TrTES S 19'/9€C § Sb'Ees S vrTOLT S |s
1000 8£60T'S |6vvee S TST9E S 8T0s6T $ 89789 S w0S8T S |v
TCS0°0  76'698°C 6175C S TESYT S | TESSP'T S S6'PSC $ ST'6SL S e
TCLO0  LES6B'T 0692T S TSSPT S T€TEL § 98°GHT S 8LYvL S |z
9SZT'0S TVTe8T $|7999 S| eraLT S | ~ |srvee  $|96L6T S| e6/68 S [T
UM¥ sSulnes [erol| s3uines  uolssiwsuel] gns s3uines ssuines s3uines Aipedey| YiuoN
Jad1s0) uonnqulsiq pue uonelsgns ASi1auz uolssiwsuesy uondnpoid
papiony |

[BI2I3WWO)) - 1B[0S

sbuiAes [eldJaWILIO))




D71 suonniog fepueny Aap

c

G0RAMEUY] UL JBMOd 330

E@mg Yy

>H_,___u‘mu,co(_3w‘_>_o_ _
un Jejos uo I3\ -
_ . ‘ o adesn PH9 913033 0} [sued Jejos | 3439913 AU Wy

“ —U m\_ _ 3 _U wL @ C _ \— w ”_. w_\é q 18WoIsn) [R10L HIeqSIAISIBWOISNT  WOLp UOKEISUaD [e30] ash s Jawoisn)

- uomnpoid
Je|os [e101 sy uo - o= +

,EESm:u SsupaLd Alpnn ¢«

_ obesn @\
D111D9]3 S31|IDB} [e10] - O
Uo pa[|Iq J9W0ISN) <

B I e
~
+ R g
)
¢ y
(S

|
abes( Jawoisn) Uil

30



. DT1'suonn{0g [epuew AMAA

(g X % N@mw i ; 8@56
wn_ PINOM 1un-Jejos AV § m_o_mem_ >>v_

_ow__mymc_ Eo_ _\_Eo_z Lmn_ wm\_mc_u _mco:__u_u< )

mmN ‘ 3 m hm_om um__mamc_ v6 >>v_ 1od mm..m_._u >_.._Eo_>_ _m:o_t_u_u<

62°7TE | - S oo E ue|oS wody AJSA023Y-19puUN [enuuy

60T © - Tejos jo W T wody uoidnpoad Yy [enuuy

56200 R s , | S §>fmg SONUIAIY 1507
L 80800 | 180D PapIoAy

CPOTT0 - : . eley|enuspissy afeiany

:o_pm__m...mc_ ..m_om u_o >>v_ ._wn_ mmhm_._u _m_p:m_u_mmm_

‘uondo [enuapisay

31



City of Traverse City
Light and Power Department
Adopted: July 27, 2010

NET METERING POLICY

Purpose!
The purpose of the Net Metering Policy is to provide an opportunity for Traverse City

Light & Power (TCL&P) customers to produce local renewable energy that may partially
or fully offset their energy requirements while ensuring the general safety of the TCL&P
employees, the Public, and maintaining the integrity of the TCL&P Distribution System.

Availability:

Net Metering shall be avaitable for TCL&P residential, commercial, and indusirial
customers on a “first come-first served” basis for those customers who meet all of the
requirements within the provisions of the Net Metering and Interconnection and
Operation Agrecments.

The total aggregated participation in this program shall be limited to 150 kW for new
projects (new projects are defined as those net metering facilities which were not
operational in parallel with the TCL&P distribution system before the adoption of this
policy) in the residential customer class, 320 kW for new projects in the commercial
customer class, and 290 kW for new projects in the industrial customer class. The size of
any individual project shall be limited to 80% of the customer’s calculated or metered
electrical requirements,

Under no circumstances shall the output from a Net Metering facility be sold to a third
party, credited to a third party, or any other TCL&P customer.

All Net Metering projects shall be located on property owned and occupied by the
customer or affiliated entity. The project must be intended to offsct a portion of the
customet’s requirements for electricity.

The facility must operate in parallet with the TCL&P distribution system as determined
hy TCL&P. Acceptable forms of generation shall be limited to renewable inverter type

generation.

The Net Metering customer shall be required to:

¢ Submit an application for review by the TCL&P Department

¢ Provide a One-Line Diagram of the proposed Net Metering facility.

e Enter into a Net Metering Agreement with TCL&P.

e Enter into an Interconnection and Operations Agreement with TCL&TP,

The customer is required to pay a one-time $100 application fee. If the generating
facility is not approved by TCL&P, the application fee shall be refunded to the customer.

Page 1 of 3

32



Determining the Allowable Size of the Project:

No single Net Metering project shall exceed a total nameplate capacity of 20 kW. Upon
receiving an application from the customer, TCL&P shall determine the maximum
nameplate capacity of the Net Metering facility allowed on the property.

Equnipment angd Operation:

The customer is responsible for the costs of construction, operation, and maintenance of
an approved Net Metering generation facility such that it meets or exceeds all industry
safety and performance standards, i.e. UL 1741 scope 1.1A, and IEEE Standard 1547.1.

Before connection to the TCL&P distribution system, the customer shall test the Net
Metering facilities safety protection devices, in the presence of TCL&P personnel, and
such testing shall be approved by the utility. TCL&P requires that the protection
equipment be tested every two years, at the customer’s expense, by qualified personnel,
in a manner acceptable to TCL&P.

The customer shall provide an accessible safety disconnect switch located outside of the
facility, in a visible location, and adjacent to TCL&P’s metering equipment.

The safety switch shall be:

¢ Lockable in the open and closed position

e Accessible by TCL&P personnel on a 24/7 basis

e Ofvisible load break capability

s Located outside within five feet of the metering point (as allowed by

code)

Permits:
The customer shall secure and maintain all necessary certificates and permits from
municipal or other public authoritics and comply with all national, state, and municipal
laws, ordinances, and regulations as may be required.

Metering:
TCL&P shall install a bi-directional meter capable of registering the flow of energy in
both directions. A monthly meter service fee may be charged to the customer. TCL&P

shall own, operate, and maintain all required billing metcring equipment.

Customer Credits and Billing:

If the electricity supplied by TCL&P exceeds the electricity generated by the customer
during the monthly billing period, or any portion thereof, then the customer shali be
billed the tariff rate under which the customer takes service for the net electricity supplied
by TCL&P. In addition, the customer shall be billed any other charges billed to other
customers in the same rate class for each meter.

1f the elcctricity gencrated by the customer during the monthly billing period, or any
portion thereof, exceeds the electricity supplied by TCL&P, then the customer:

Page 2 of 3

33



i.  shall be billed for the appropriate Customer charge as other Customers in the
same electrical tariff rate class for each meter and any other charges, such as
Demand and reactive power charges and any applicable adjusting rates; and

ii. shall be credited for the net excess kilowatt-hours generated during the billing
period. The kilowatt-hour credit may be used to offset future consumption, but
shall not be carried forward more than 12 monthly billing cycles.

iii. shall grant to TCL&P without any compensation to the customer on the first
billing cycle in April of each year, any unused energy (kWh) credits
accumulated by the customer during a continuous twelve month period.

A customer shall be considered to be in violation of the TCL&P Net Metering Policy if
the customer installs a generating facility with a nameplate capacity greater than that
which was approved by TCL&P. All agreements shall immediately be void, the meter
may be removed, and the project must be suspended or the customer may have the Net
Metering Agreement terminated until the violation is cotrected and approved by TCL&P.

All facilities existing before the adoption of this policy may be allowed to continue
operating in parallel with the TCL&P distribution system with the written consent of the

Executive Director.

Renewable Energy Credits (REC’s) shall be owned by the customer unless stated
otherwise in the Net Metering Agreement.

Eduwand E. Rice

Edward E. Rice
Executive Director and Secrctary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 3 of 3

34



Traverse City Light and Power
Summary of Net Metering Projects
Updated November 10, 2015/February 2016/April 2016

Agreement Date Address KW Type Energy
10.18.2010 Old Town Parking Deck 35.8 Commercial Solar
06.07.2011 2600 Aero Park Dr 8.2 Commercial Solar
01.25.16 933 Rose St 10.07 Commercial Solar
08.19.2014 607 Railroad PI 7.3 Residential Solar
07.13.2015 603 Railroad PI 7.2 Residential Solar
07.13.2015 605 Railroad PI 7.2 Residential Solar
01.14.2016 606 Station St 7.3 Residential Solar
08.19.2014 611 Railroad PI 7.3 Residential Solar
07.17.2014 871 Webster 3.5 Residential Solar
04.06.2012 2018 Arrowhead Drive 5.7 Residential Solar
09.30.2010 414 W Sixteenth St 3.52 Residential Solar
09.23.2014 319 N EImwood Ave 3 Residential Solar
08.19.2014 609 Railroad PL 7.3 Residential Solar

59.32
08.30.2011 880 Parsons Commercial Wind

Total Subscribed

SUMMARY OF NET METERING AVAILABILITY
Industrial Net Metering allowed 290
Industrial Solar actual 0
Industrial Net Metering available 290
Commercial Net Metering allowed 320
Commercial Solar actual 54.07
Commercial Wind actual 5
Commercial Net Metering available 260.93
Residential Net Metering allowed 1560
Residential Solar actual 59.32
Residential Net Metering available 90.68
Total available

641.61

|0ther Renewable

** Street Lights located at West End Beach - 250 watt solar panel & 300 watt wind turbine

** Clinch Tunnel/Wind Solar Unit - 1 kW

** Solar Unit at Great Lakes Environmental Center
** Renewable Generator at Train Depot Building
**Wind turbine located at the University Center

35



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board ?4’%/
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering
Date: April 7, 2016

Subject: LaFranier/Barlow Transmission Line Upgrade Project: Construction Bids

On Wednesday,March 30, 2016, three bids were received for construction for the
LaFranier Road 69 kV Transmission Line Project and one contractor did not bid. The Bid
prices are:

Vendor
CC Power $ 798,909.00
Kent Power $1,076,876.64
Newkirk Electric $1,457,608.12
Hydaker-Wheatlake No Bid

For your review, attached is GRP's letter recommending Power Line Supply along with a
hid tabulation. Staff concurs with GRP's recommendation to accept the bid from CC Power
in the amount of $798,909.00, and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a
purchase order for their canstruction services.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff's recommendation then the following motion
would be appropriate.

MOVED BY . SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $798,909.00 WiTH CC POWER,
LLC FOR THE LAFRANIER/BARLOW TRANSMISSION LINE UPGRADE PROJECT;
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZES THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS IN THE BEST INTERESTS
OF THE UTILITY.

36




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

March 30, 2016
15-0799.01

Mr. Pete Schimpke

Traverse City Light & Power
[131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RI: LaFranier Road 69kV Transmission Line
Contractor Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Pete:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed reviewing the bids submitted on March 30, 2016 for construction
of the LaFranier Road 69kV Transmission Line Project. Of the four contractors solicited for bids, three
(3) bids were received. CC Power LLC submitted the low bid for the project in the amount of
$798,909.00. A complete bid tabulation is attached to this letter.

CC Power LLC has submitted a complete and conforming bid including the subcontractor list. The list
of subcontractors has been reviewed by TCL&P staff and no exceptions were noted. CC Power’s bid is
3.5% above the cost estimate prepared by GRP Engineering, but falls well within the project
contingency amount. GRP Engincering, Inc. sees no reason not to accept their bid in the full amount for
this project.

Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

ITZP Pileshodi

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Mr. Tim Arends

6290 Jupiter Ave NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Balmont, M1 493086 Petoskey, Mi 49770
P! 616.942,7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 616.285.6448 ‘ F: 231.439.9698

37



elozZ/ot/e

'3'd ‘UBUIIDIN "d ISEYIN

WA a4

~au] ‘Buusawbug Juo

Ag

qEL P U1 P JRURIRT

LO'BEL0-GL

‘peas pue pauado Apignd siem uleiey PSIBINGE] SPq B4 ‘G102 '0S UDJEl ‘ARPSSUPSAA U0 SULL 12004 “WrB00: L | 1€ 18U} AILISO 0 81 Sty

TL'809'LS¥ LS

puog pig
\

THPSY N uoBaysniy
19318 SHIGOY §/31
“3U] ‘93931 JIMEN

¥9'918'9L0°L$

puog pig
s

0SEBY [N “AND Jua)y
ig Buudg 06
JaMOd JuUay

PIg ON

LA96F 1IN AN pasy
19248 W10 "N 02¥
Auedwog ajepeaypp-Jayepiy ayL

pig mo

00°608'86.%

puog pig
\

AroBY [IN ‘eyseNEy
8202 X0g "O'd
19mod D90

SHUVYINTH

301dd dig 38vd
HOIIVHINOD TVIOL

ALRINDES
aig

Sy3adig

0LL6% IIN ‘A3NS0OL3d
13341S Avd 65F

*ONI "ONIHIINIDONT dND
P EENBIE]

ANIT NOISSINSNVRLL Y d3INVI4Y

NOLLVINGV1 did

9896¥ IN ‘ALID ISYIAVUL
13341S SONILSYH LELL

HAMOd 8 LHOIN ALID ISHIAVHL

UINMO

38



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board /}\
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director C}f/
Date: April 7, 2016 —
Subject: Garland Street Streetscapes Project

Attached for your review is a request from the City Manager for TCL&P’s financial
participation in the Garland Street Reconstruction Project that is planned for this summer.
The City is requesting the utility financially support the street lighting elements of the project
that include distribution undergrounding in accordance with TCL&P’s Decorative Lighting
Policy, which is attached for your review.

Also attached is the Joint Streetlight Operation & Maintenance Policy, approved by the
Board and City Commission, In my determination, after discussion with TCL&P staff and
the City Engineer, this particular project should be categorized as decorative street lighting.
The policy for decorative street lighting requires the utility to approve, delay or disapprove of
the project. If approved, the utility shall provide engineering/design services and cover the
cost of underground electrical facilities. All other costs including poles, fixtures, bases,

event outlets, holiday circuits, dimmers, etc. are to be paid by other parties. Of course, the
Board has the right to fund projects to the extent it desires if it deems the project a benefit to
the community and/or TCL&P.

Because the question has been asked, 1 have attached an analysis of TCL&P’s participation,
including funding sources, for previous street lighting expansion projects along with costs for
fixtures used in those projects. As you may know, TCL&P assumed the annual costs of
street lighting, at the City’s request, including maintenance/replacement in 2010. The annual
expense is about $190,000. When this occurred it prompted passage of the Joint Street
Lighting Operations & Maintenance Policy to govern how future projects should be funded.

Below are a few basic options for the Board’s consideration to this request: (this is not all
inclusive as a variety of blended options or other options can be created),

1. The Board approves funding the cost of undergrounding of distribution
facilities to accommaodate the street lighting elements of the project in accordance
with the Decorative Lighting Policy. Fixtures, bases, dimming system, upper
receptacle circuits, and lower receptacle circuits are to be paid by other sources.
TCL&P will add the lights to its street lighting system and pay the monthly per light
tariff rate and absorb those costs into its budget and also be responsible for their
operation and maintenance.

2. The Board approves funding the cost of undergrounding of distribution
facilities to accommodate the street lighting elements of the project in accordance
with the Decorative Lighting Policy. The Board would like to also financially

39



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

support any or all of the following: The fixture costs (estimated at $130,000);
dimming system ($18,700); upper receptacle circuits ($23,322); lower receptacle
circuits ($22,880).

3. The Board denies participation in its entirety and is responsible for no costs of
the project. In this case the project can proceed but would be metered separately and
be billed to the appropriate party (DDA or City) similar to the private decorative
lighting project in the Midtown Development.

Staff supports option #1 as that is consistent with the Decorative Lighting Policy adopted by

the Board. If you agree with Staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES AN AMENDMENT TO THE SIX YEAR CAPITAL
PLAN TO INCLUDE GARLAND STREET DECORATIVE LIGHTING IN THE
AMOUNT OF $307,000, MORE OR LESS, FOR THE UNDERGROUND COSTS OF
THE SYSTEM, AS REQUESTED BY THE CITY MANAGER.

40



GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
The City of Traverse City 400 Boardrman Avenue o0
Traverse City, MI 49684 Neng
(231) 922-4440
(231) 922-4476 Fax
temanage@traversecityml.goy

Office of the City Manager

{

April 6, 2016

Traverse Cily Light & Power Board of Directors
Atin Tim Arends

1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City MI 49686

Re:  Request for Participation in Garlaiid Street Realignment Project
Dear Chairman Taylor and Board Members,

As you may know, at the regular meeting of the City Commissioners for the City of Traverse City held on
Monday, March 7, 2016, the Cily Commission authorized the execution of a Property Transfer and
Redevelopment Agreement between the City and the Traverse City Convention and Visitor’s Bureau
Education Foundation. Execution of this agreement will allow the City to proceed with the proposed
realignment of Garland Street as shown on the attached map, redirecting traffic away from Grandview
Parkway to Union Street on the east end. This project was approved by the City Planning Commission
for consistency with the City’s Master Plan on July 7, 2011,

Attached is a communication dated March 30, 2016 from City Engineer, Tim Lodge, providing
calculations to the allocations to the bid that are in accordance to the policy for decorative lighting. The
Garland Street realignment project includes a component for lighting. Therefore, we request funding
participation from TCLP in the amount of $307,879.87 plus any portion of Item C that TCLP finds to be
in the best interest of the City or Light & Power, We will continue to work with TCLP staff on
identifying the appropriate light fixtures, and reimburse to TCLP in accordance to policy.

At this time, we respectfully request that the lighting component of this project be implemented as part of
the Capital Improvements Plan and the Budget for Traverse City Light and Power, and that this item be
placed on the agenda for the Tuesday, April 12, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors for Traverse City
Light and Power. I will be in attendance at that meeting to answer any questions the Board may have
regarding the project.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely, y%
Martin Colburn
City Manager

MC/jd
Attachments:  Map of Garland Street Project Area
3/30/16 Memo from City Engineer, Tim Lodge
Copy: W. Twietmeyer, City Treasurer
File

41



CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY
GARLAND STREET RECONSTRUCTION/ STREETSCAPE
SITE CONCRETE PLAN (P.O.B. TO P.O.E.)

i
ey 1ot
TET] e
Bt T e
@ A T L) )
@ T Lo e o =3 G
< o e L
e o u e Ve ) - — -~
D [ som ot [l
D i e ot = -
B [Py e o £y r
i e e > ~
D DTN e, i v o o
| Earpea T o)
I X P " rumhie
[ m——— - # = s
[T BamrmadTaon e ) L3
[ aarrmam 7 ~ .
e -
e .
PANTUENT g
- i Fry T Coodiil]
s e
o et Vv AT, N AT S | e M ATy = o
Y W e T A L T =
ey
—

» /)

42



o werREAT o
v 40, ey
AL e, L 4

CRANDVIEW PARIWAY

O e Ol DY 4 BT
ared e, PP 4 e WAL, T

B HHGEOOH S EHER RY RN

HALL ST

CILETE

HHHH AP R E E R BB A RHHHHREUEE QY EHEH

elr]<]-

Lok Frewmt 30
[ e A T AT

e st s
o i, Pt
AT P, s o4 1
ORATAA ECTE ore B RT3
w1 o A
it

P - e, PR A
fomemiynts

et . o 1088

o R M, Y DM T MARTIC AT Tt
" w100

tALLSF

e L A" GADPLPATIC Do, 44
P 3, TUEAOR 4 B4, T, 3P

A A, A TETAD PR T T
i

v, G DO AT Y.

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY
GARLAND STREET RECONSTRUCTION/ STREETSCAPE
HALL STREET

43




..... P T A -
L T R g W
. - iy T
e P
e e b [a——
NS RN B o, s et
'
© st e
iy
e

8 Gramungas sorur al, e e O B
Covim

£ nanen ey s s
el Bt b L) o ek
AR A3 POMPBLP \IPALALL AL S0 o
Sajain i | oo AT bt D SATIAA
o 9 S| ok 7 0 1 Pt T s

EXISTING MANHOLE
47 CONCRETE SIDEWALK PIPE GONNECTION

STANDARD STORM MANHOLE

-ty

wan

247 CONCRETE CURE AND GUTTER (INVERTED)
(MDOT Fa MOD.)

ask i

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

wa
41 Al AR AP 0 DA

WATER TIGHT MANHOLE CQVER

. e . . T b R e
f]l.'x'..'.'.jl]l[.’ o oo gy T

e.
B i,

PRt L
[Pm popsomerons e o — .

2016 GARLAND STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STREET, STORM SYSTEM & SANITARY SYSTEM DETAILS

. . - = “.._ 1.— - ik e et Harion i | O
\ ot b e TN e S ey
" SorCALTE : e, b, will e s, Do mar

—— | rm
A A

: PARKING MEYER DETAR. _ w ] LT = -
m * e o S
N Wi HErge: /
: it 7 Y -
N aa
¥

o T e T e e

SRR S . < =

- . ' o
BUS PARKING STRIPING P AN STAIRS -
-~ feetny TRARFIC SIGN DOAT DETAN,

s . \

44



\

Memorandum The City of Traverse City %1%

Engineering Department

TO: Marty Colburn, City Manager
Rob Bacigalupi, DDA Executive Director
Tim Arends, TCLP Executive Director

FROM: Timothy J. Lodge, City Enginder %
DATE: March 30, 2016
SUBJECT: 2016 Garland Street Reconstruction Project -Street Lighting-Update

Upon review of the March 28, 2016 Memorandum in regard to the above referenced
project | found that further clarification is needed to align the request with the 2013
Decorative Lighting Policy. The policy reads that:

“Generally, Light & Power's contribution to Decorative Lighting Projects will include the
cost of underground infrastructure, engineering, administration, instaflation charges,
Inspections and final closeout. The cost of fixtures, and their eventual replacement, shall
be borne by the requestor or benefiting party.” And “As in all lighting projects, Light &
Power retains the right to self-fund projects it deems in the best interest of the City or
Light and Power.”

Therefore we have recalculated the portion of the project that meets the 2013
Decorative Lighting Policy as follows:

a. Underground infrastructure including pro-rated costs (18%) for contractor
mobilization, traffic confrol, erosion control, contractor requirements of
environmental construction management plan, pavement removal and
replacement, electricalllighted related utility relocations, conduits and wiring,
underground light bases, light installation charges, underground service and
cabinets, hand-holes and spare conduits for future use in accordance with the
attached spreadsheet and not including contingencies:

$282,458.60

b. Engineering for the project Is $143,800 or 9% of the construction contract
amount. The pro-rated share for Decorative Lighting is calculated at 9% of
$282,421.27 or $25,421.27.

¢. The fixture cost ($130,000), the dimming system ($18,700), the upper receptacle
circuits ($23,322) and the lower receptacle circuits ($22,880) .may also be
considered in addition to the request.
$194,902.00

Therefore we recommended that the City/DDA request funding participation from TCLP
in the amount of $307,879.87 plus any portion of Item C that TCLP finds to be in the
best interest of the City or Light & Power.

45



HiNSeY PIE - 193 180D 1900 UQRINAILODEY 1I0RE PURLED 9LOZ WY HFE
9HOUTCA
zol
oURSTE S[O5K H sy} Shr) g AR 13 DOHEL i§
[ D H [T [ %
[T) [ 3 R e [ 3
0L Wi H TPRHO0T PG porryd WO W00 AR Do nDp 13 [ =
[ i 3 TPanig] y3 0 wa R s R} i3 wo 5%
00EELL W H TulSid] v 100 000 WD WO Ig) 13 WLy Ed
Wi 4 O5VIENE L H U} 8 JORIVDN "W ALy BATRRRS) PR 00 RvE 3
[T [T 3 T [T £
002l [ ED ¥ Tarig cpf WL Wt T
el [[17 ¥ 1S 19 5 WOroL] G GG VLI VWK el Ly &
ZINEY U0 T [ R T B [
000" [ [ E We [
[T iR 3 V3 & B
[T [ ¥ s o
00 e 8 ) WS =
0005L [ 3 o TG (3
[T [ 3 B R 5 [l
[ ok 3 - -
ZIET [ o0EL T we E e
B0RLO0C [ 3 3 E
SRS Wy 3 N [
CO00R'L wWose % - =
0TS T [N SR ST MR 3
00000T, ] e ] ER |
00’y H [ wnart ED I
ODID00SH STH00SE  § S T WL T
U0 5] 10050 3 A P g ey lopig 93 [E] 5L
[Ty [ EE £ 5 S G [ G EE ST Ed
0000FE [ CEZAE TS T0H 315 S]] Doty Pig) Whet 0t T
008L'S s|WE L] TSRS YTH Do P | ke [ 21
) [ 0 3 e G ] 05 i3
0| B GED F] wey e o FRE [
00089 3 wary SR ¥ T S W ®
[Ty T | 005 ¥ T R I O [
[TTRg A LT RN e ] R I3
] T A ) T T ) o =3
- HiE 3 TR T et Q0L 3
B0 ¥ | ooooce slocoot  § [ e L We [
WWOUE_ § |oomnvor s |00 ¥ T G ' s Eaam_ ] W [
BRI ZE e TG T GERIEA 'Gdr s AeraEg] 1 [ (3
Q60008 3 | o000z [} [ ] [ wepstg Bsowmad] ~ 13 0005 3
00008 A 3 TR YL 17 R0y s 0] €3 W 3
OB E [ (TR ¥ o0 SIS 1 3 WA a0 % [ o
OO : R ¥ Tiapeg) B 0107 1 o) SR 0] 43 'H &
[T 3 ¥ | AT T s ) Whr T
00008 sJisowE 3 e R e ] 0t [
P S U o g U a0p B3 ok 5
e R R A ) Wik 7
Y s00¢ ] i somad Fadi Sopat ™ 14 WA £
apserey g ogss 3 T T Y] ] 0'6r Tk
00ORLL 5] 0608 E Vg 0G0 NI C) ot M BMgE 1y 20554 1
00DGE S0 ] i TEE] 0 oF
00005 [ s U] i | T uupunty eMest T 13 o [
OySETE H D ¥ LA e T WK ]
00008} [ ] H B 7
00005 [ E3 X Wb 9
E H 000SLE RiGA H [ 5
W00 3 jcoond's [} o000 3| 0O0G0s § £ ¥
Woo'L 3 LT "I R0 GOAg] W] WL T
oy H w00t SPOTASE  § [CSErEN ) @t z
DOOTEEL $ 00000 H T (sl wreaon]  wosy 00’ 3
st G L il BT N T sy 40 yogdietan wn 1 fous | odwey
, BT
SOOI D1 3t DY P OUIID ALY P
SAHODILYD DRIGHN A0 2070 puE ST 2 Jow(y _

190f0l UOIONRSUOIIY I004S PUBIIES 9L0Z

BLOZ ' WOV MG USEHELOD Al
WY DQ:0L BLOZ 8T udew [ed PR
1Rajud YOIINATUCORY ROLS PUCHTS ILOT

46



SRRy BIG - 1T 1562 198{04d UOISRIIBLODEY 10045 DRONED G402

WY 008

SLOTIES

Tz

augsy STROSL 8
wowE__ sjooo 5 R e M T o
WHEy_ 5] 00288 B Ty {06 T 03 63 Wi e
Cneal £ ) O0QSEE 3 TURTAG EEE_O [x] [ A
orhon % COTRLAE | 00GEE 8 e B e A e T3 )
T o LR 5] W )
u1d el uduvn wn | Anwg ] onway
. SWALI LYY
‘3] 4ax0g Pl ouess SAE | vopmier
WORNTE § AN 3 00MCTE %ok
Foqty-d % “t Bupseujug
ODORLEE  § LIDEYTRE € QOYORES Bl 3 @A A5YR —
T, oL oFL T gy gameeol W | ooten |,
01T opeLLs 0% s GXiy L gg wpeen] CO0E0 Bk
oT05T WL [ § TUEIGORRURICS 0, %7 X 4 S Aulliod WHE o3 W0F 0L
00009 P woke s [ WL
[y DOESLL [ [ Tk
ST 55 L ok
DL GIARLL e R B I ) 3 L0k
drearst o000 W% W0 wHod WH) 93 [ opk
QUL00IE SO00HE womy 3§ UOREPUNG ] MO O] 93 w00 3
00010 [ FE L ] [ [
W2W'SE e 3 ¥ e L] B0 750ve 0
Ty oo n_ 03 H e [ W
00iE 3 00 a3 0 B0 Wewd| w0l )
OO 3 ouiess [ [N ) T DovgRL [
e s 0L WHaC LS I i B
0CEAE m_ SOEL 52 [ KT T RG] [ £
000 [y WO 02 0 .0 TRM DulUEIoY ] O ]
Ny 000 v3 5] )
Ty o 5 73 0y ]
coteem  TJOCRNE ] [5] &
WL s[aose T T [ E
Ny A T IR Do £
SooELs st TATIEE ™ LAt pues NE s AL U5 DOGIE )
w0IT 0055 T} DI P00 A0 TN Peg] 13 A
00551 [ LSRR WL WAL L e PO A0 SR i) &3 Wl ™
060Gt R 3 ALY WL 1) iR DR MO DY Wiy 53 [ oW
008"y R I3 H TG WL VG sl PO AN BN WIgE 14 I 1]
[ O 3 S A T WAL 0
373 R § S o PO IR iG] W &
00215 RIS H RO, Wy 5 RaLL TP P i % [
000 NEE ¥ TN T T e, TV Wiy 14 050 Iz
00578 HET H TN v & R = 0005 5,
007 5} 0008 T ETECAALE YR i
0T shoosr % Tl FOu 10 Sy WLl WK Wl v 005
00904 shoae 3 EES a.x_ 1 00 7T 2
00E? SEIO%Y & S I R i
DOGOFS REES 3 CECIY T W 7
ovy 5L 5 [ RS I W [
DEOREL s{o0CE 3 BUFNG VoG WRG0R0] 13 0015 [
T K 3 WIS, GO BTIR0] i W [
S [ 5 R M WHE )
DOTIE'S HEH $ s I [ %
cinilel_ tlser 3 (e s I W ek ]
VENBUEONET | BURKET] T CAE ) 01§ 500 TS 0] P | AT )
opz'st 508 3 TRIE0Y W W0 3000 IRIORH) ARG 13 00948 1]
QORRS (G 3 (el 1o DG Ty Rematua| i3 e 4]
FHROYILVO JNIaNnd U] a0 Pur ouL) 4,400

190f0id USHONISUCIDY JG04S PUBLIESD 9LO0Z

FLOT ' ey BIRET UomsruwoD KD
WY UL BLOT B8 U/ R g
TG LODNITSUEIRY WIS PUTUTD JLOT

47



Light and Power Depattment
City of Traverse City, MI
Adopted: June 22, 2010

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY AND TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
STREET LIGHTING OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE POLICY

JOINT RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A WRITTEN POLICY REGARDING THE
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF THE STREET LIGHTING SYSTEM WITHIN
THE JURISDICTIONAL BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

WHEREAS Traverse City Light & Power (*TCL&P™) is a component unit of the City of
Traverse City and under Section 175 of the Charter for the City of Traverse City is responsible
for the development, production, purchase and distribution of lighting services within the City of
Traverse City as referenced in the City’s Attorney opinion; and

WHEREAS pursuant to its responsibility under Section 175 of the City Charter TCL&P
shall manage all aspects of the street lighting system within the City of Traverse City’s
jurisdictional boundaries (the “System”), including all costs of operation and maintenance. The
City shall reimburse TCL&P annually an amount equal to 5% of the street lighting revenues
recorded on TCL&P’s financial statements; and '

WHEREAS, TCL&P has the knowledge, expertise, and ability to manage and operate the
System;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the TCL&P Board and the City of
Traverse City adopt the following written policy regarding the operations and maintenance of the
System as follows:

1. Street Lighting Defined. A lighting system consisting of one or more luminaries with
the intended use for public roadway lighting that is open to the State of Michigan or
any political subdivision or agency having jurisdiction over public streets or
roadways: No private property applications would be considered part of the System.

9. Enginecering & Design, TCL&P shall be responsible for the engineering and design
of the System including any new additions. When appropriate, TCL&P shall
coordinate installation/replacement of any new or existing strect lighting services
with the appropriate city department(s).

3. Charges for Service. The charges for street lighting services shall be charged to the
appropriate local unit of government in accordance with the tariff rates established by
TCL&P. For street lights within the System TCL&P is the appropriate local unit of

govelnment,

48




. Addition of Street Lights. Any additions to the System shall be at the sole discretion
of TCL&P. In the event that the City requests an addition to the System, such request
shall be made by the City Manager or his or her designee and the City will agrec to
pay a one-time fee per light as agreed to by the parties, In all cases TCL&P retains
the right to self fund lighting projects it deems in the best interests of the community
or the Light & Power Department.

. Decorative Street Lighting. Public decorative street lighting shall be available along
public streets including neighborhoods and business districts; the process for

obtaining approval of a new decorative lighting project shall be governed by the
TCL&P Decorative Street Lighting Policy.

. Secwity Lighting. From time to time citizens may request that lighting be installed in
a public right of way, such as an alley, for security reasons. These private paily
requests shall be directed to the City Police Department who may recommend to the
City Manager that lighting be installed. This type of lighting shall be subject to the
Private Area Lighting Rate or “Security Lighting” offered by TCL&P. Monthly fees
for this service shall be billed to the appropriate unit of government, or to the
requesting party as directed by the City Manager, through the utility billing system.
TCL&P shall not be considered the appropriate unit of government for this type of
lighting.

. Removal, The removal of street lights shall be the responsibility of TCL&P. Any
City request to remove street lights shall be made in writing by the City Manager.
Any liability that may arise as a result of the removal of street lighting as requested
by the City shall be the responsibility of the City.

Eduand E. Fice

Edward E. Rice
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

I hereby certify that the above Resolution was
adopted at the June 21, 2010, Regular Meeting
of the City Commission held in the Commission
Chambers, Governmental Center, 400
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684,

Debbra 4. (Cantiss

Debbra A. Curtiss, City Clerk




Light and Power Department
City of Traverse City, MI
Adopted: November 13, 1990
Amended: June 11, 2013

DECORATIVE LIGHTING POLICY

TO PROVIDE guidance to the Department in facilitating the development of Decorative Lighting
Projects within the utility service area for Traverse City Light & Power Board consideration of
approval. Further, to define ownership, operation & maintenance, system replacements, and
funding options,

DECORATIVE LIGHTING DEFINED: A system consisting of one or more luminaries where
the Department has an existing distribution system with secondary voltage available that is defined
as an approved decorative lighting style under the “MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT” section of this
policy, or is otherwise approved as a decorative lighting style by the Executive Director. There
are three types of decorative lighting systems within the community: Residential/neighborhood,
Pedestrian/trail, and Commercial Districts. This policy covers only those projects that provide
lighting in public areas or within the public right-of-way that are accessible to the general public.
Projects within private developments and/or on private property shall be privately designed,
constructed, and owned. Light & Power shall meter and bill private development projects at
Board approved tariff rates.

LIGHTING SPECIFICATIONS: The Department shall design, furnish, install, and own all
equipment and infrastructure comprising the decorative lighting system. Specifications will be in
compliance with City of Traverse City Master Plan Urban Design Element, along with City of
Traverse City regulations for lighting levels, if any, Environmental concerns and energy use are
some of the factors that will be considered to limit the amount of lighting. Lighting will be
installed to Department specifications, which will be regularly updated as technologies advance.

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT: Poles and fixtures used for decorative lighting must be approved
for use by the Executive Director. Approval will be based on operation, maintenance,
conservation, and cost criteria. There are 2 styles of decorative fixtures that are currently
approved: the acorn and the candy cane. The acorn is used in both residential and commercial
districts; while the candy cane is used in the commercial districts. Fixtures other than styles
supported by the Department wiil require approval by the Executive Director and may subject the
requestor(s) to reimbursing the utility for any additional costs, including the cost of maintaining an
appropriate level of inventory for repairs and/or replacement equipment and fixtures.

Page 1 of 4

50




Candy Cane Acorn

INSTALLATION PROCESS: This section will address when Decorative Lighting Systems

will be installed and/or upgraded, the end of the service life, cost of replacement, and the approval
process.

a)

b)

Installation/Upgrades: Every effort will be made to install and/or upgrade Decorative
Lighting Systems in conjunction with the City’s plans for street reconstruction, During
the annual Capital Planning Process, it is requested that the City Manager provide a written
request to the Department’s Executive Director on any City projects that will or could
require decorative lighting additions/replacements. Additionally, the Department shall
notify the City Manager in writing of any systems that are scheduled for replacement well
in advance for City Capital Planning purposes.

It is anticipated that the City and the Department will work together to minimize project
costs and to reduce the inconvenience/disruption to residents, businesses and visitors.

The Light & Power Board retains the right to deny or delay participation in any project.

End of Service Life: The lighting infrastructure that the Department installs is designed to
last approximately 20 to 30 years. At some point the cost to maintain the system becomes
more than its present value and/or safety concerns have resulted in the infrastructure
reaching the end of its usable service life. The end of service life will be determined by
the Department’s Executive Director. The end of service life shall not occur before all
street lighting assessments are paid in full. When the end of service life is reached the
Department may scheduie its replacement in its Six Year Capital Improvements Plan for
approval by the Board and City Commission. Approval of the Plan will determine that the
system will be replaced. If the project is not approved the system will be scheduled for
removal.

Cost of Replacement: The Decorative Lighting System shall be owned, operated and
maintained by the Department. Replacement of the system shall occur as follows:

Page 2 of 4

51




o The related underground systems will be replaced, as required, with the entire cost
borne by the Department. The underground distribution system supporting the
Decorative Lighting System becomes part of the Departments overall distribution
system upon its installation, and it shall be maintained and replaced in the same
manner as any other underground distribution system.

o The above ground equipment/fixtures shall be replaced with the cost of the
equipment/fixture paid by the benefiting party. This can be done through special
assessments, Tax Increment Financing, bonds, City Capital Projects Fund, or any
other funding mechanism that reimburses the utility for the cost of the replacement
fixtures/fequipment. Whatever form of reimbursement is used, including the
timeframe for reimbursement to the utility will be presented to the Board at the time
the Board considers approval of the purchase or replacement equipment/fixtures.

e The Light & Power Board retains the right to self-fund any project it deems in the
best interest of the City or Light & Power.,

d) Approval Process: Time permitting; all Decorative Lighting Projects shall be included in
the Light & Power Six Year Capital Improvements Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan will have
been approved by the Light & Power Board, City Planning Commission and City
Commission.

Initiation of a Decorative Lighting Project can be from either the City, Downtown
Development Authority, neighborhood organization, or other interested parties. With
approval of the Executive Director, statf will prepare conceptual plans and cost estimates
for inclusion in the Plan (the cost estimate will separate the cost of fixtures, underground
infrastructure and installation charges.) If outside of the Plan timing process, these
conceptual plan and cost estimates shall be forwarded to the Board for consideration of
participation in the project, along with a recommendation from the Executive Director.

Upon Board approval of the Plan, staff (or other party if by agreement) shall commence
with engineering, design, and preparation of bid packages in coordination with the City or
other party(s) so that Light & Power staff is prepared to seck bids in a timely manner for the
project. Actual bids shall be submitted to the Board for final approval, as required by the
Purchasing Policy.

The Department reserves the right to delay approved decorative lighting projects due to
other priorities, at the discretion of the Executive Director.,

FUNDING: The cost of a Decorative Lighting Project includes fixtures, underground
infrastructure, engineering, administration, design, installation, inspection, and final closeout.
Generally, Light & Power’s contribution to Decorative Lighting Projects will include the cost of
underground infrastructure, engineering, administration, installation charges, inspections, and
final closeout. The cost of fixtures, and their eventual replacement, shall be borne by the

Page 3 of 4




requestor or benefiting party.

a)

b)

Decorative Lighting with Street Reconstruction Projects: Decorative lighting will be
installed as pait of a street reconstruction project at the request of the City and as approved
by the Board. Decorative light fixtures will be purchased and installed by Light & Power.
The cost of the fixtures shall be reimbursed to Light & Power as approved by the Board.
Funding may come from the City’s Capital Improvements Fund, TIF Funds, Grants,
special assessments, or other funds.

Decorative Lighting Stand Alone Projects: Decorative lighting can be installed in
advance of street reconstruction or along designated recreation/pedestrian trails in the
public right-of-way. Decorative light fixtures will be purchased and installed by Light &
Power. The cost of the fixtures shall be reimbursed to Light & Power as approved by the
Board. Funding may come from the City’s Capital Improvements Fund, TIF Funds,
Grants, special assessments, or other funds.

Operation and Maintenance Costs: Decorative lighting that has been installed in the
public right-of-way and to Light & Power standards (lighting levels and equipment used)
will be owned by the utility. The operation and maintenance costs for decorative lighting
are borne by Light & Power in accordance with the City of Traverse City and Traverse City
Light & Power Street Lighting Operations and Maintenance Policy adopted on June 22,
2010.

As in all lighting projects, Light & Power retains the right to self-fund projects it deems in the best
interests of the city or Light & Power.

This policy supersedes and replaces the Decorative Street Lighting Policy adopted on November
13, 1990, and all other policies in conflict with this policy.

Tenothy 1. endo

Timothy J. Arends,
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 4 of 4

53




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Traverse City Light & Power
Special Assessment Recap

Special Improvement District 91-01
Description:

Residential Pedestrian Lighting in all streets between the alley south of Front Street and alley north of
Fighth Street from Boardman Avenue to Railroad Avenue.

Cost: $100,635.00

interest Rate:
0% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Number of Installments: 20
Other Notes:
City charged $112.67 per month for energy and bulb replacement for 54 fixtures. Total cost of the

project was $124,266.60, overspent relating to future inventory used to repair bulbs, globes and et
cetera,

Special Improvement District 93-01

Description:
Residential Pedestrian Lighting Oak Park Neighborhood.

Cost: $218,400.00

Interest Rate: _
0% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Number of Installments: 20

Other Notes:

LP Board approved request for Oak Park Lighting Project with a cost roughly of $218,400 (80%} to be
repaid in annual installments by property owners - $174,720 through the SID process over twenty years
at no interest. LP board approved the request for Oak Park Lighting Project with twenty percent of the
cost by the City - $43,680 over twenty years in equal annual installments with no interest.

Special Improvement District 94-01

Description:

Streetscape project including new sidewalks and curbs with brick trim, pedestrian lighting, crosswalks,
street overlay, and trees in and along the following named streets — Union Street from Front Street
sough to Union Street bridge to south Cass Street bridge, State Street from Cass Street then west 132

feet,

54




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Cost: $555,815.95

Interest Rate:
6% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Number of Installments: 10

Other Notes:

Found letter of support for $200,000 street lighting from 1989 board minutes. Approval was granted by
the Light and Power Board on March 27, 1990 for a total cost of $215,532. Contracted labor $65,000,
Material $139,063, Internal Labor $9,869 and Internal Equipment $1,600 less DDA funding for outlets of
$16,000 for a remaining cost of $199,532,

Special Improvement District 94-02

Description:

Streetscape project including new sidewatks and curbs with brick trim, pedestrian lighting, crosswalks,
street overlay, and trees in and along the following named streets — Union Street from south Union
Street Bridge to 9" Street.

Cost: $467,120.00

Interest Rate:
6% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Number of Installments; 10

Other Notes:

LP approved on 4/12/94 providing decorative lighting for the Streetscape Il approximate cost $234,400
(Union and Cass Street) project subject to the DDA paying $48,000 for Xmas lighting circuits and the City
paying $1,191.36 per month lighting costs,

Special Improvement District 96-03
Description:
Residential Pedestrian Lighting — Oak Heights Neighborhood ~ Lincoln Street, Boyd Avenue, Rose & Fern

Streets in the area between the alley south of Eighth Street and the railroad right of way and between
the alley west of Garfield Avenue to the alley west of Rose Street.

Cost: $60,916.00

Interest Rate:
0% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Number of Installments: 20

55



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

Other Notes:
City cost $12,183 and Owners cost $48,732

Special Improvement District 96-04

Description:

Residential Pedestrian Lighting — Central Neighborhood — 5™, 6™, 7%, 8" Street and Pine Street,
Wadsworth Street, S. Oak Street and S. Maple Street in the areas between the alley north of 5™ Street
and the alley south of W. 8" Street and the area between Division Street and Locust Street except for 6"
Street east of Wadsworth.

Cost: $198,229.56

Interest Rate:
0% or at a rate not in excess of 1% of a rate of interest borne by bonds that may be issued for SID

Mumber of Installments; 20

Other Notes:
City cost $39,646 and Owners cost $158,584

Street light fixture/pole costs:
Candy Cane {downtown).......... $2,620.30 (paid by monthly rates/light to city....until those costs were
transferred to TCL&P in 2010)
Acorn {Neighborhoods)............ $2,144.00 (paid by special assessments)
Silver Drive (Commons)............ $2,293.49 (100% paid by TCL&P for 17 fixtures)
West Front Street (includes installation costs and foundation bases)
Type A - $4,014.55 (High level)
Type B -$5,045.24 (Low level - single fixture)
Type C - $7,328.03 (Low level - double fixture)

Garland Street (proposed)......... $5,000 (26 fixtures = $130,000)

56



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board P
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director @
Date: April 4, 2016

Subject: Cass/Lake & Park Street Streetscapes Projects

Attached for your review is a request from the City Manager for TCL&P’s approval of and
financial participation in the Cass/Lake & Park Street Streetscape Projects that are planned
for 2016-17. The City is requesting that the utility financially support the projects in
accordance with the Decorative Lighting Policy in the estimated amount of $450,000.

The previous agenda item included the pertinent information needed by the Board in
evaluating this request. The Decorative Lighting Policy identified the Board’s policy
regarding the utility’s financial participation for decorative lighting expansion in the City.
Staff has determined that both of these projects fall under that policy.

If the Board approves the projects to expand the street lighting in these areas, the utility
would be responsible, by policy, for the distribution underground and design enginecring of
those projects. The poles, fixtures, bases, dimmers, decorative lighting circuits and event
outlets would be the financial responsibility of other parties.

A point of clarification for you from the City Manager’s memo: While TCL&P did have
these projects lisied in its Six Year Capital Plan in prior years, it was noted in the Plan that
the funds would come from special assessments of the benefiting property owners. Those
projects were all removed in the current year’s Plan due to a lack of specific information and
costs. The lack of those specifics impaired the Board’s ability to support their inclusion. The
removal of those projects should not be construed to mean the Board did not support any
individual project or the utility’s intent to financially participate in any project. There simply
was not enough substantive information for the Board to support inclusion.

At this time, there is no detailed information from the City on the cost of overhead vs.
underground for these projects. Inclusion of a project in the Capital Plan does NOT mean
approval by the Board. Staff anticipates the City will present schematic designs (when
completed) that will indicate the character and extent of the project with engineering cost
estimates before the project is bid out and approved by the City Commission, or other public
bodies, to gain the Board’s approval of the project and funding level commitment of TCL&P.

(SUGGESTED MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGELE)

57




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

Considering that the City intends to complete these projects in the 2016-17 fiscal year Staff
recommends that the Board amend its 2016-17 Capital Improvements Plan to include
Cass/Lake Streets and Park Street decorative lighting projects for the underground portion of
those projects, consistent with the Board’s policy regarding extensions of decorative lighting
within the city.

If you agree with Staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES AN AMENDMENT TO THE SIX YEAR CAPITAL
PLAN TO INCLUDE CASS/LAKE STREETS AND PARK STREET STREETCAPES
PROJECTS FOR THE UNDERGOUND LIGHTING ELEMENTS OF THOSE
PROJECTS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DECORATIVE LIGHTING POLICY.

58



GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
The City of Traverse City 400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, MI 49684
(231) 922-4440
(231) 922-4476 Fax

tcmanage@traversecityri.gov

Office of the City Manager

April 6, 2016

Traverse City Light & Power Board of Directors
Attn Tim Arends

1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City MI 49686

Re: Request for Participation in Cass Street/Lake Street Streetscape Improvements Praject and the
Park Street Streeiscape Project

Dear Chairman Taylor and Board Members,

The City of Traverse City has two sireetscape projects that are anticipated to be implemented in the 2016-
2017 Budget year; specifically the Cass Street/Lake Street Streetscape Improvements Project and the Park
Street Streetscape Project. Both projects include public lighting components at an estimated cost of Three
Hundred Fifty Thousand dollars ($350,000) and One Hundred Thousand doliars ($100,000), respectively.

These costs will be further refined through a collaborative effort with Traverse City Light and Power as we
get closer to project implemeritation. As you may be aware, the City provides opportunities for public
input regarding the design of future streetscape projects, which includes public input relating to the
lighting components of those projects and has a bearing on the cost of each project. Each project has been
included in the Capital Improvements Plan for both the City and Traverse City Light and Power in past
years. For purposes of reference, these are listed as Project #61 (Cass/Lake) and Project #18 (Park) in the
City of Traverse City CIP.

In accordance with the Decorative Lighting Policy adopted by the Traverse City Light & Power Board on
June 11, 2013, we respectfully request that the lighting components of these projects be implemented as
part of the Capital Improvements Plan and included in the FYE 06/30/2017 Budget for Traverse City Light
and Power. Twill be in attendance at that meeting to answer any questions the Board may have regarding
these projects.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter.
Sincerely,

Mattin Colburn
Cily Manager

MC:ph

Copy: W. Twietmeyer, City Treasurer
File

59



09

ae1 A19A0021 1500 Jomod a3 y3noay) s3s00 uoreIauad ul 9SeaIoUL JAA0D 0] 945G | I8 S2DIAILS 10J SaFIRYD Ul 2SB2IOUl PUR 183K 04,7 JO (3500 uonelauad) Jamod aseyoind ul pasealoul pajewunsg

Ie2A 947 JO 2SEIOUT UOTIB[JUI [BIOUL)
Jeak 1ad 94¢ Jo aseauoul ymols peo]

LT-9T0Z UT 000°000° 1§ £q SoNUSAT 9SBAIOUT [[IM A13A0001 1500 Jamod pue 1eak [8osyy Jo pua je paje[dap aq (1M puny jsnif,

suonduinssy pue s3jon

T09'8TC'Y TI9G'ELT'Y EEV'EV6E 89Z'5T9'E €5L'280F 60Z'0£0'8 68b'0ST'ZT SOP'STT'ET anuejeg JUILLISIAUT g YseD) pajeulBsapup | paniasaiun
000‘00%'01 000°000°0T 0000066 000'008°6 000'002’6 000’5Z5'6 000°0S€’6 000°00Z’6 2oue|eg JUDLWISIAUY 7 SE) PAAISSTY
T09'8T9'PT TI96'ELT VT EEP'EVBET 89Z'STH'ET E€SLZBLET 60Z'S6S'LT 68¢'00S'12 Sop’'8TE'tE Soue|eg SjUSWISIAUT 1B yse) Buisopy
| I _ | \
Z96'ELTVY EEP'EPRIET 89Z'STH'ET £62°z8L'eT 60Z'S65'LT 68’0051 S0P'81E'ZT £86'160'TZ ssuejeg sjusunsaAul B yse)y Guiuadg
6E9' PP 6Z5’DEE S91'8ZY (s8p'29£) (9sp'zT8’E) {082's06°E) (o16’218) Zer'oeT’T (-) 1oyag/sniding mopysen
Trb's90’TY T/5'89g'0F S8'SLY'6E ET0'T6V'6E 8LLL6T'TY 08E'TVS TV 9TY' LT LE 0TL'T9%"9€E sjuawified |ejoL
- - - - - 00005k 088°£0€ - sp3[oid Buiaybr 192405 |2UoIppY
000'052'% 000542 000°060" 000'008'% 000'981°8 00S"9bL'L 000'££T'9 80E'PTZ9 sjuawisaaur jeyde)
£20'958 Zh7'6£8 £8L'7T8 ¥59'908 LER'06L 0EE'SLL (v8z'o6Y) (0se£'e8¢) Juawsnipy 89 95v9
TE9'F90'Z 8b1'+20'T 657+86'T 8rS'SH6'T 00%'£06'T 000'048°T 000°064°T 657'£98'T 294 A0
L1ETL 668'0L 605'69 9v1'89 018'99 005'59 000°€9 §L8'(S 2oueInsuy
LEH'T1E'T £12's82'1 £05°092'T [8/'SET'T 985'T1Z'T 008'/81'1 0S6'Sk6 8E6'bER [BI3UBD 13 SARRNSIUILIPY
£85'0€S 790'9z8 LbL'STS $£9'505 0ZL's6% 000's8¥ 0Z5'£09 TOE'ETS F0IAIBS JNGNd B UORBAIBSUOD
895219 85#'509 £85'€65 8k6'18S LES'0LS 05£'655 050'8¥5 769895 Buunoody Jawolsny ¥ Buli)y
£8b'z8Y £T0'ELl 8bL'E9k 559'bSh ObL'Skb 000LEW 00E'T0b #85'90% a5UBdx] UoISS|SUR|
PEL'06T'Y 709'90Z'F ozT'vel'y SST'ER0'y S/6'E96'E 05z'988't 052110 6Z6'0£5'E asuzdxg uopnqusia
1£9'€85'9 £T¥'790'92 S6£'155'52 £8€'050'5T £02'655'+2 059°2£0'v2 0sz'158°2¢2 £41'558'22 asusdxg uonesUsn
sjuawied
T80'0TIS TV 660°669°0F 6T0P06’6E 8TSPTT'6€ TTE'SBE'RE 00T'9€£9'LE 005'95£'9€ TET'BBY'/E syd1aday [ejoL
000°0DST 000°05T 000°05T 000°05T 000'SLT 000541 000'5/T - Ul s13jsues|
17910k FEQ'66E 86/'16€ 9TT'bRE +85'9/€ 002'695 00Z'+8F EF5'PES sanuany buperedo uoN
69'BES'E £80'69FE 990°10k'E gLE'PEE'E 866'997'C 006'40Z'E 00z'eee’s 06L'9bL'2 sanuaAsy bueladg Jsul0
986'ETH'LE 6/E'089'0€ G5T'196'GE §£0'052'SE ObL'$95'bE 000°£88°EE 00T'SLLTE 664'96EVE Sa01AIBS 10 Sabiey)
sydiaoay
zT/1e0T 1Z/0Z02 0Z/6T0T 6T/8T0C 8T/L10T LT/9T0T 9T/ST0T ST/YT0T 11D [BISI]
ajewnsy ajewsy ajewnsy ajeuwnsyg ajewysy - ajewnjsg pajoaloid [enioy

UOI1BZIYIOWE JBSA QT - SI9SSY JO on|BA IIEW - 1SBDa.04 MO]d YseD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2016

TRAVERSE CIiITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Conlrolle@
Date: April 6, 2016

Subject: Project Close Outs

As part of the Strategic Plan, staff as a goal to provide progress financial updates to the Board
throughout the duration of a project, as well as provide a project close out report upon
completion of a project,

The following are the financial close out reports for the South Side Distribution Substation, West
Side Transmission Line Upgrade and Wayne Street Distribution Line Rebuild, and Hickory Hills
Distribution Underground Projects. FEach spreadsheet that is included provides the budget
authorized through the project authorization compared 1o actual, along with a contractual amount
compared to actual.

SOUTH SIDE DISTRIBUTION SUBSTATION

This project span was over two administrations and the resources are not available for staff to
provide reasoning for the variances from actual to budgeted numbers. Staff brought authorization
for contracts and purchase orders for these expenditures primarily at the April 22, 2014 board
meeting. Overall the project came in over budget by $1,235,646.

WEST SIDE TRANSMISSTION LINE UPGRADE

Overall the project came under budget by $335,517. Following are some reasons for the
differences:

¢ Tree trimming came in over budget by $106,301 because of the unknown impact of the
special restrictions of accessing the right-of-way through the gate located off Randolph
Street and chipping all debris and broadcasting the chips within the right-of-way
(including wood) with a fracked wood processor.

¢ The construction contract came in under budget by approximately $171K with the bids
ranging from $612,959 to $2,041,031. It was assumed the variance on the bid
submissions was caused from current workloads of contractors during that time frame.

» Design engineering came in under budget by approximately $74K resulting from the
engineering firm’s ability to utilize previous work when this project was in preliminary
stages in the past by the utility.

e Wood poles came in under budget through the bid process. All bids were relatively
close, ranging from $217K - $227K.

61




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEELTING OF APRIL 12, 2016

Materials came in over confract because transmission inventory that had been in stock from
previous projects was utilized as these types of items do not need to be at those stocking levels
for day to day operations.

WAYNE STREET DISTRIBUTION LINE REBUILD

Overall the project came in under budget by $8,891. The only item of significance is that GRP
Engineering, Inc. did not invoice us for engincering services for this project.

HICKORY HILLS DISTRIBUTION UNDERGROUND

Overall the project came in over budget by $35,285, primarily resulting from a change order in
the construction contract. The reasoning for the change order was due to the increase in
directional boring by 478 feet to save vegetation at the low and wet area, the replacement of
street and parking lot lights on Randolph Street and in Hickory Hills, and the splicing of existing
underground cable.

62



Y¥S'ISEZ6 LO'9t9'SET’T ET°020'SeL'Y LO'9Y9'VZ6Y 00°000°689°€ [BlOLl pueln
- YT ESTLE T ESTLE wawdmba/ioge| [eusaiu
(00'0€T) 00°0£5°TZ 00°00.'69 00°045°69 00°000°8Y JBYDLMS 1INDULD
- (00'¥839°12) 00°9T€'8L 00°'9TE'8L 00°000°00T $13s0[23y AYST

" (00°00£'82) 00°00£°69 00004769 00°00086 siayealg 3nddip
{0£'TES'ST) 0g'8eT'96Y 00°09.70€'T 0£'82Z7'987°T 00°000°064 J0BIILOD UOIIDNIISUCD Uuchelisqns
9L TLSTY 9L TLSTY 00'000°06¢ 9/'TLS'TEE 00°000°06¢ juawaseue|y Jsuoj/udiseq/3ulssauiduy
- 00 0E6'T 00'0€6'96 00'0€6'96 00°00028 Sjaued JoJ1u0) /3uthe|ay
{00 zre'T) 00'889°C¢ 00°000°ST Ariadoud

89°966'C €875€°£0T S1'95£079 £€8°75€°€T9 0000091V UoIINIISUCD) 81
08 €¥¥'S9 8L°76T 90y 86'878'€S6 84762°610°T 00°000°¢4S [ELziein QL
- 00°60Y I¥T 00'60¢'T¥T'T 00607 IVC'T 00°000°000°T slauliojsuedy

- 9/ vET'TT 9L ¥ETTT SNOUSEHDISIN

- Ot'861°SE OF'861°GE |89

- {00°000°£97) 00°000°£9T Azuaduiuo)
PRI 128png PEBIIUOD Ae[ino yse) 398png s|age] Moy
{2pun) 200 {1apun)} 430 s|age] uWn|jo) junowy Jo wng

UOIRISQNS YINOoS

aweN 103fold

9107 ludy
UOI1EISgNS YInos
Jamod pue ys AuD asuaaes]

63



ST YI06L (p69T5'SEE) 68°€9C°0TE‘T 80°'v6/'96E'T ZOETEZELT [e10], pueln
(ct'86L) L1°T8E'ST 0T 086°0€T L9 T8T0ET 0S'00870T 3l [o13dO B BIIM
- 16'SEP' Y 16'SEV'y Juawdinb3/iogeT feulsu

- ST'SL0°T ST'SL0T $NOBUL||SISIN
(0s¥57) {05'¥SL'2S) 00°09L°21T 0S'S67'L1T 00052042 $3{0d POOM
9¢°£ZT9 (r9'2£8'89) 00°000'89 9¢ LTT'VL 00°000'€ET Buusaudug udisaq
- 00°500°T 00°'500° jesa

- {007000002) 00°000°00Z Aduadunuo)d
(00'0£9°£2) (zor9S¥'TLT) 0S¥ZE'S09 0S5 ¥69°L4S 7S'0ST'6YL 10B43U0D UOIINIISUOD
65°888¥8 88'v0¢ 62°978'eE 88 ¥IF8TT 00'0TT'8IT s|eualen
- Q0'E€LT'TT 00'€LTIS 00°€/T'1S 00°000°0¥% $3]0d POO/M paleulwe]
(€T°0T9'Z) (eT°0TT'E) 00°00STL £8'688'¢9 00°000°£L9 suooadsu| pue Supels
vZ' T0EvT 7 TOES0T 00'000ZET 7 TOE9ST 00°000°0S Sulwwila) 3341
PeU0] ummvsm RRNUOD >m_u50 ysen ummuu:m m_wn_m..m Moy
(a2pun) 1200 {1apun) Janp S]ageT uwnjo) unowy o wng

DUIT UOISSILLISURL] IPIS 1S3M

awiep 103loud

910 |1ady

108{01d DUl UOISSILISURI] BPIS 1S3

18mod pue Y3 Al assaaed

64



- (Lo'T68'8) 00°298vY 6€¥28'T9 00°00%'69 [Blol puglg
- gy'STET 9%'STE'T juawdinb3/i0qeT |eulaiu)
- €6'9%7T €6'979'ST 00°00F'¥1T sjetialey
- (00002's) 00°00Z°S juawageuepy 1sU0)/usisaq/SutizauSug
- (000082} 00°008'L AdusBupuo)
- 00'798°C 00798ty 00'798'vY 00°000ZY 10B11U0D U0ONIISUC)

Peauo) 123png PeIUC) Azpino yse) 1a8png sjaqel moy
(1apun) 1on0 {12pun) 42nQ s|2ge] uwnjod Junowy Jo wng

uonNquUISIQ 1S SuARA

awen 103[odd

9107 IHdY
uoIINQIIISIg 192415 SUABAN
13MOod pue 1y3n Al asuaned}

65



8€9EL'0€

9L°582'SE 9E" €TV T 9L v0L'9S2  00°6TH'12C [elol pugip

€1°SE0'TE LTI 19°858°0S vL€68°T8  00°0SZOL s|etsien
- 00°££5°T 00°££5C [e897

- (86'166°2) ZO'S00'TT 0000061 juswaBeuely Jsuon/usisag/sutissulsuy

- - 00'658'£S 00'6S8°LS  00'658°LS aseyaund Jawoisny

- {00°000°6T) 00'000°6T AdusBunuo)
(52867} 00°L608Y SL'S0L"€0T 00°ZO¥'€0T  00°0TE'SS 10BJIUOD UOIINIISUOD
1e1uo) 198png 1Je13U0) Aejano ysen yo8png s|aqe] moy
{12pun) 430 {aapun) 00 s|lege1 uwn|odp unowy o wng

S30IAIBS punosdiapun SHIH AJOYNIIH

aweN 1d9fold

9T0T jMdy
S[1!H AJOX2IH
Jamod pue Jysi Ay assanel]

66



1131 Hastings Street

TRAVERSE CITY Traverse City, M| 40686
LIGHT & POWER (231) 932-4543
stvardek@tclp.org

Request

“Public Comment — Reserved”

Traverse City Light & Power Board of Directors
Department of the City of Traverse City
Regular Meeting

Please Print or Type

*A‘ M Q& ge s representing N W EAC, Groundworlé s 4~
-
pursuant to Light & Power Board Rule 11 {see below), request to be p!aced under the Mi Clinee
A(’-h-_m Mv’d‘wo\"‘ﬁ
“Public Comment — Reserved” on the Agenda of the Regular Meeting scheduled for
Tuesday, Ax‘? el 12, 2ok

_ ) oY .
| understand that up to 15 minutes is allowed for my presentation.

\Qeywish to address the Board regarding the following matter;
B p
We. \A!\’Q h o ey i%‘bd '—S'CW'TCLTD o hat our gV'OLLPS

[\A\JL beew olm’ij o~ex ’}‘ﬁvﬂ (a_g’(- i ledéws +o ldawn)

CAucate awd Q&LUO(J—L'{'@, ’ﬁ)v’ Ve vnew able C}V‘c’{‘b&
(_O,hév:f}\/)'rw Particwlar  aglav, Sov vowr drvea ,

Do B N

Slgnature Date
Ly t
(234 ?f?\r\m sula Dy, A9l $L YL — QLY 3
Address Daytime Phone
[ Light and Power Ratepayer: (R _ City Taxpayer: EL
City/Township

Regular meetings are held the 2nd and 4th Tuesday’s of each month at 5:15 pm.
Please return to the Executive Director no later than Tuesday, 5:00 pm, the week prior
to your requested date.

Thank you,

Stephanie Tvardek

Administrative Assistant

67




